
 

 

 
TRANSIT & RIDESHARE COMMITTEE 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

Monday, January 25, 2016 
1:30 to 2:30 p.m. 

Solano Transportation Authority 
Conference Room 1 

One Harbor Center, Ste. #130 
Suisun City, CA 94585 

 
 ITEM 

 
BOARD/STAFF PERSON

1. CALL TO ORDER – SELF INTRODUCTIONS 
 

Jack Batchelor, Chair

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
(1:30 – 1:35 p.m.) 
 

Jack Batchelor, Chair

3. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
(1:35 – 1:40 p.m.) 
 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Minutes of the Transit & Rideshare Committee Meeting 
of December 2, 2015 
Recommendation: 
Approve the Transit & Rideshare Committee meeting 
minutes of December 2, 2015. 
(1:40 – 1:45 p.m.) 
Pg. 3 
 

Sheila Ernst, STA

5. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Manage Lane Implementation Program (MLIP) 
(1:45 – 2:00 p.m.) 
  

Robert Guerrero, STA

   

 

Transit Committee Members 
 

Osby Davis 
City of Vallejo 

Elizabeth Patterson 
City of Benicia 

Jack Batchelor, Jr. 
(Chair) 

City of Dixon 

Harry Price 
City of Fairfield 

Curtis Hunt 
City of Vacaville 

Mona Babauta 
Consortium Member 

Solano County Transit 

Erin Hannigan 
(Vice-Chair) 

County of Solano 

Jim Allison 
CCJPA 

Kevin Connelly 
WETA 

Robert Macaulay 
STA 

1



 

 

 

 

 

6. ACTION ITEMS (Discussion) 

A. Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) Update 
– Transit and Rideshare Element – Goal Gap 
Analysis 
Recommendation: 
Recommend to the STA Board to approve the CTP -
Transit and Rideshare Element – Goal Gap Analysis as 
shown in Attachment A. 
(2:00 – 2:15 p.m.) 
Pg. 7 
 

Robert Macaulay, STA

B. Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) Update 
– Resources 
Recommendation: 
Recommend to the STA Board to approve the CTP-
Transit Element Resources Chapter as shown in 
Attachment A. 
(2:15 – 2:25 p.m.) 
Pg. 21 
 

Robert Macaulay, STA

7. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 
(2:25 – 3:00 p.m.) 
 

Jack Batchelor, Chair

8. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 Meeting 5 
1. Express Bus System – Philip Kamhi 
2. Policies and Milestones – Robert Macaulay  
3. Draft Transit Projects and Programs – Robert Macaulay 
4. Federal FAST Act Implications for Transit – Elizabeth Richards 

 
Meeting 6 

1. Draft Element – Robert Macaulay/Elizabeth Richards 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT  
 The next Transit & Rideshare Committee meeting is scheduled for Monday, March 28, 2016 at 

1:30 p.m. in the STA Conference Room. 

2



 

 

Agenda Item 4.A 
January 25, 2016 

 
 

TRANSIT & RIDESHARE COMMITTEE 
Draft Minutes for the meeting of  

December 2, 2015 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Jack Batchelor, Jr. called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. in the Solano Transportation 
Authority (STA) Conference Room. 
 
Committee Members Present:  

 Jack Batchelor, Chair  City of Dixon 
 Osby Davis    City of Vallejo 
 Curtis Hunt    City of Vacaville 
 Elizabeth Patterson   City of Benicia 
 Chuck Timm for Harry Price  City of Fairfield 
  

Committee Members Absent:  
 Mona Babauta   SolTrans Representative 
 Erin Hannigan   County of Solano 
  
 Others Present: 
 Anthony Adams   STA 
 Sarah Fitzgerald   STA 
 Daryl Halls    STA 
 Robert Macaulay   STA 
 Liz Niedziela    STA 
 Elizabeth Richards   Elizabeth Richards Consulting 
  

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
On a motion by Board Alternate Member Hunt, and a second by Board Member Davis, the 
Transit and Rideshare committee approved the December 2, 2015 agenda. (5 Ayes, 2 Absent) 
 

3. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
None presented. 
 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR  
A. Minutes of the Transit & Rideshare Committee Meeting of October 8, 2015 

Recommendation: 
Approve the Transit & Rideshare Committee meeting minutes of October 8, 2015. 
 
On a motion by Board Member Davis, and a second by Board Member Patterson, the Transit 
and Rideshare Committee approved the recommendation. (5 Ayes, 2 Absent) 
 
 
 

3



 

 

5. ACTION ITEM (Discussion) 
A. Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) Update – Transit and Rideshare Element – 

Goals 
Robert Macaulay provided an update on the Comprehensive Transportation Plan. He 
explained that the goals are the milestones by which achievement of the Purpose Statement 
are measured and lead to specific policies and performance measures that help guide the 
STA Board when it allocates resources to projects and programs. He stated that currently-
adopted Transit and Rideshare Element Goals are not organized in any functional or 
thematic manner, which makes them harder to follow. Mr. Macaulay cited the new proposed 
Transit and Rideshare Element recommended Goals that fall into four general categories (1) 
Provide Rider Convenience and Choice, (2) Develop and Maintain Infrastructure, (3) Help 
Improve Air Quality, and (4) Fund Vehicles, Facilities and Services. Mr. Macaulay 
concluded that if substantial comments are received at the December 15th Consortium 
meeting, STA staff will bring the Goals and comments back to this Committee but if 
comments are minor, they will be presented to the STA Board for adoption in January 2016. 
 
Board Member Patterson suggested developing a routine process to update the element and 
that the goals also focus on the younger generation in addition to the senior community. 
 
Robert Macaulay stated that he would add language to accommodate these points. 
 
Recommendation: 
Recommend that the STA Board adopt the revised Transit and Rideshare Element Goals 
provided in Attachment C. 
 
On a motion by Board Member Patterson, and a second by Board Member Davis, the Transit 
and Rideshare Committee approved the recommendation. (5 Ayes, 2 Absent) 
 

6. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS (Discussion) 
A. CTP-Transit and Rideshare Element Update: Resources 

Elizabeth Richards provided a presentation overview of the CTP-Transit and Rideshare 
Element Update: Resources. She explained that the resources are focused on intercity bus, 
carpool/vanpool, paratransit and mobility management programs. She highlighted the 
federal funding and revenues used by intercity bus, carpool/vanpool, paratransit, mobility 
management. Ms. Richards outlined the 5307, 5310, 5311, 5316, 5317 and CMAQ federal 
programs and discussed state, regional and local funding. 
 

B. Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) Update – Transit and Rideshare Element – 
Goal Gap Analysis Introduction 
Robert Macaulay provided an introduction to the Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) 
Update – Transit and Rideshare Element – Goal Gap Analysis. Robert Macaulay explained 
that the Goal Gap Analysis examines the difference between the Transit and Rideshare 
system as it exists today, as reflected in the State of the System report, and the system as it is 
envisioned in the future, as reflected in the Goals. Mr. Macaulay explained the criteria that 
are used to measure the progress on meeting the goals of the Transit and Rideshare Element. 
He stated that STA staff will also be working on an analysis of the resources that are 
reasonably expected to be available over the next 5 to 10 years and that the final steps in 
completing the Element is to look at projects identified by the 7 cities and the county, the 
transit providers, Caltrans and STA, and then begin to prioritize the available resources to 
implement projects that fill the identified gaps. 
 

4



 

 

Board Member Patterson requested a graph be developed that outlines date to date rate of 
implementation and the growth capacities in transit and modes to track our investments. 
 

C. Mobility Management (Senior & People with Disabilities) 
Daryl Halls provided a presentation on the Mobility Management (Senior & People with 
Disabilities). He stated that the senior growth in population will double by 2040 and 
explained how this issue was identified through plans, summits, advisory committees, and 
the 2011 Solano Transportation Study for Seniors and People with Disabilities in which 
providing mobility was cited as a significant issue. Mr. Halls discussed the Solano Mobility 
Management programs priorities for implementation and the Solano County Intercity Taxi 
program phases 1 and 2. He outlined the Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16 Mobility Management 
revenues of 1.8 million, issues that still need to be addressed and the next priorities. Mr. 
Halls provided the status of Solano County Pothole Report, discussed a few facts about older 
drivers and explained how the new tax measure would help to resolve these issues. 
 
Board Member Alternate Hunt announced that Paul Mitchell will be in Vacaville on January 
28th in Vacaville discussing voter apathy issues and how information is received. 
 

7. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 
Board Member Patterson recommended that the STA track the criteria of the State’s Cap and 
Trade Program because we are a low density rural County that does not measure up to the 
current criteria for urban projects. 
 

8. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
A summary of the future agenda items for 2015 was presented. 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 1:30 p.m. The next Transit & Rideshare committee meeting is 
scheduled to meet on Monday, January 25, 2016 at 1:30 p.m. at the Solano Transportation 
Authority. 

5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page intentionally left blank 

6



 

  Agenda Item 6.A 
January 25, 2016  

 
 
DATE:  January 11, 2016 
TO:   STA Transit and Rideshare Committee  
FROM:  Robert Macaulay, Director of Planning 
RE:  Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) Update - Transit and Rideshare 

Element - Goal Gap Analysis 
 

Background:  
The Solano Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) is one of the STA’s primary long-range 
planning documents along with the Congestion Management Program (CMP) and the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s Regional Transportation Plan, known as Plan Bay 
Area. The CTP consists of three main elements: Active Transportation; Arterials, Highways and 
Freeways; and, Transit and Ridesharing.  
 
The overall purpose of the CTP is to identify opportunities and resources to move the 
countywide transportation system from its current condition to a desired future condition, and to 
then prioritize steps to bring this change to fruition. The first step in preparing the Transit and 
Rideshare Element was identification of those services and facilities that the Element’s policies 
are designed to influence; namely, intercity transit services. These intercity transit services 
provide connectivity between Solano County’s communities, and connect Solano County with 
the wider Northern California mega-region, especially the Bay Area. The primary components of 
the Transit and Rideshare system are:  

 Intercity bus service, primarily provided by FAST and Soltrans  
 Intercity rail provided by the Capitol Corridor  
 Ferry service from WETA  
 Vanpools and carpools  
 Paratransit and Mobility Management services  

 
The State of the System and updated Goals have been approved by the Transit Committee and 
the ATA Board.  A Goal Gap Analysis has been drafted for the Transit Committee’s and the 
Consortium’s initial reviews on January 25 and 26, respectively.   
 
The development of the Solano CTP is driven by the activities to implement its purpose 
statement, which is: 
  

The Solano Comprehensive Transportation Plan will help fulfill the STA’s mission by 
identifying a long-term and sustainable transportation system to provide mobility, reduce 
congestion, and ensure travel safety and economic vitality to Solano County. 

7



 

 
Within the Solano CTP the Transit and Rideshare element Purpose Statement is: 
  

Identify and develop mass transit and rideshare facilities, services and policies that 
maximize the ability of Solano residents, workers and visitors to reach destinations 
within Solano County, and to access regional transportation systems. 

 
Discussion: 
 
Goals are the milestones by which achievement of the Purpose Statement are measured.  They 
lead to specific polices and performance measures that help guide the STA Board when it 
allocates resources to projects and programs.  The 18 goals have been organized into four general 
categories: 
  

1. Provide Rider Convenience and Choice 
2. Develop and Maintain Infrastructure 
3. Help Improve Air Quality 
4. Fund Vehicles, Facilities and Services 

 
The draft Goal Gap Analysis is attached.  For each goal there is a measurement of the progress 
made since the last CTP-Transit Element of 2005.  There are three measurements:  Completed, 
Significant Progress and Preliminary Proposal.  A description of what has transpired over the 
past ten years that resulted in the standard of measurement is also presented.   
 
There are many goals that have achieved Significant Progress.  A few have been Completed.  
Some are in the Preliminary Proposal state.  Regardless of measurement, some goals are on-
going in nature and will require further action. 
 
The Goal Gap Analysis is being presented for an initial review.  Once it is finalized, the next step 
will be to develop processes and policies to achieve the goals.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
Recommend to the STA Board to approve the CTP-Transit and Rideshare Element – Goal Gap 
Analysis as shown in Attachment A. 
 
Attachment: 

A. Draft CTP-Transit Element Goal Gap Analysis 

8



 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

CTP – Transit Element Goals Gap Analysis Draft Revisions 

The Transit Element is intended to guide the planning and development of a Solano transit system that 

will serve Solano County as it is projected to grow and change in the next twenty‐five years.   The Transit 

Element’s Purpose Statement is to 

“Identify and develop mass transit and rideshare facilities, services and policies that maximize 

the ability of Solano residents, workers and visitors to reach destinations within Solano County, 

and to access regional transportation systems.” 

This aligns with the purpose statement of the CTP which is  

“The Comprehensive Transportation Plan will help fulfill the STA’s mission by identifying a long‐

term and sustainable transportation system to provide mobility, reduce congestion, and ensure 

travel safety and economic vitality to Solano County.” 

These Purpose Statements are very broad goals.  More specific goals are proposed to provide guidance 

to decision‐making and actions which collectively are designed to achieve the purpose of the Transit 

Element.  The goals vary in that some are general descriptions of the desired overall nature and state of 

the system, others are aspirational while others are specific and tangible.  In order to implement the 

Purpose of the Solano CTP and the Transit Element of the Solano CTP, the following goals have been 

adopted by the STA for the Transit element.  They are presented in broad categories. 

Measuring Goals.  The following criteria are used to measure the progress on meeting the goals of 

the Arterials, Highways and Freeways Element: 

 Completed – this is a goal with a specific end‐point that has been reached, such as the 
construction of a facility or the identification of Transit Facilities of regional 
Significance.  This also includes studies that have been adopted (even if recommendations 
have not yet been implemented) and the initiation of an on‐going program. 

 Significant Progress – this is a project with substantial completion; typically, more than 10% 
Plans, Specifications and Estimates (PS&E) but not yet into construction or completion.  It 
also includes studies where data collection and analysis has started, but final 
recommendations have not been adopted. 

 Preliminary Proposal – finally, this category covers projects that have less than 10% PS&E, 
plans that have not started data collection, and programs that have no administrative 
and/or financial commitments and no start date. 
 

Provide Rider Convenience and Choice 

1) Create and operate a transit and rideshare system that provides access to county and regionally 

significant population centers, employment and civic amenities, focus countywide and regional 

transit resources to create a transit system to connect these land uses and adapts to changes in 

demographics.  

 

9



 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

Significant Progress – The countywide intercity transit and rideshare system is primarily focused 

on the urban areas in Solano County with the largest and most concentrated developments, 

while still providing connections to smaller or less concentrated communities.  This is primarily 

done through the transportation facilities of regional significance, which are the major bus, rail 

and ferry terminals that can serve the largest number of people.  These facilities are 

supplemented by park and ride lots that serve both major population or employment centers, 

and routes most used by Solano commuters. 

 

While the intercity transit network primarily focuses on those commuting to destinations 

outside of Solano County, it also provides connections within the county, primarily along the I‐

80 corridor.  Phase II of the Transit Corridor Study is seeking to better connect locations within 

Solano County such as Solano Community College campuses and Solano Mall. 

 

These facilities are also supported by programs that connect transit users to appropriate modes 

and routes, and help carpool and vanpool users connect to providers.  STA and the regional 

transit providers work with each other to provide the best integration of schedules and 

destinations for the primary users of the system.   

 

Implementation of an intercity transit and rideshare system is an ongoing effort, and will never 

truly be completed.  This is in part due to the fact that communities and demographics change 

over time.  New housing or businesses are constructed or vacated, new technology makes using 

different transit and rideshare modes easier, more difficult, or more or less expensive, and 

people’s preferences for mobility change over time as their abilities and preferences change as 

well as changes in congestion, fuel prices, and other mode options. 

a. Include facilities and programs that directly support Priority Development Areas (PDAs).  

Completed.  STA has designated transit facilities of regional significance, which 
include all major bus facilities providing intercity bus services, the San Francisco Bay 

Ferry Vallejo terminal, and the existing and under construction train stations.  All of 

these facilities are located in PDAs.  No new express bus, train or ferry facilities are 

proposed for locations that are outside of PDAs.  New park and ride lots are proposed 

for areas outside PDAs. 

 

2) Create a reliable mass transit system that allows passengers of local transit systems to easily and 

conveniently connect to intercity and regional transit systems.  

Significant Progress – Integration of the local and intercity transit systems occurs through 

several different methods.  The FAST system, which provides both local and intercity transit bus, 

is operated by the City of Fairfield.  FAST coordinates local and intercity route integration within 

its own system.  FAST services also connect to the Capitol Corridor Suisun City Amtrak station, 

multiple BART stations, SolTrans, Napa VINE service, the Sacramento bus and light rail RT 

systems, YoloBus in Davis, and Dixon and Vacaville’s local bus systems.    FAST also connects to  

10



 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

multiple transit services in Contra Costa County at the BART stations.  SolTrans, which provides 

intercity and local transit to the cities of Benicia and Vallejo, also provides its own internal route 

timing integration.  SolTrans also serves the SF Bay Ferry Terminal, multiple BART stations, and 

connects to the FAST, Napa VINE and Contra Costa County transit systems.  The SolanoExpress 

Intercity Transit Consortium provides a forum where intercity transit providers can discuss and 

help coordinate schedules, route location and other coordination issues. 

 

As noted above, the provision of local and intercity transit is an ongoing process that will 

constantly be adjusted to account for changes in routes and route use, mode preference, and 

integration with rail and ferry transit services.  As a result, this goal will never be Completed. 

 

3) Develop and implement programs to coordinate the provision of interregional, intercity and 

local transit services. 

Significant Progress – An Intercity Transit Funding (ITF) agreement was initiated in 2006.  

Although the ITF was initially created to stabilize funding and service for SolanoExpress intercity 

routes, it has also provided a regular forum to coordinate route service details, connections, and 

fare changes.  Regular Ridership Surveys on SolanoExpress routes are necessary to update the 

ITF.  These Ridership Surveys have often included data collection on local routes that can assist 

in making decisions.  

 

In 2006 a SolanoExpress marketing campaign was coordinated to introduce the public to newly 

restructured services and identity as SolanoExpress routes.  The SolanoExpress restructuring and 

identity emphasized the streamlined services between Solano cities and to connections beyond 

county lines.  The marketing campaign also had a component for the (then) Vallejo Ferry.  A 

SolanoExpress website was created to centralize information for intercity services and 

promotions which has been maintained.  FAST and SolTrans also maintain information on the 

SolanoExpress routes they operate.  Subsequently, the SolanoExpress route system has an 

identity that has been promoted through maps and other promotional materials. 

 

In 2013, fare payment was simplified with the implementation of the Clipper electronic fare card 

in Solano County.  The three major transit operators:  FAST, SolTrans, and Vacaville City Coach 

began to accept Clipper as well as the SF Bay Ferry.  Among other benefits, the Clipper card may 

be used on all these and most other Bay Area regional transit systems and riders no longer need 

to handle paper transfers and multiple fare instruments.  Use of Clipper on some local transit 

operators remains low while the operators incur the cost of participating.  Dixon Readi‐Ride, Rio 

Vista Delta Breeze, and the Capitol Corridor do not accept Clipper. 

 

Transit Trip Planning has improved and become more easily available over the past ten years.  

Regionally MTC had developed 511.org which compiled transit operator data throughout the  

 

 

11



 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

Bay Area and created a convenient centralized on‐line location for users to plan their transit trip.  

The private sector has developed transit trip planning functions into popular features such as 

Google Map’s Google Transit Planning feature as just one example.  This raises the awareness of 

transit and makes it easier for consumers to learn about transit options. 

 

a. Study options for coordination of local and intercity transit. 

Significant Progress ‐ A countywide Transit Consolidation Study was completed in 2009.  

Two transit operators (Benicia Transit and Vallejo Transit) consolidated and created a 

new organization ‐ Solano County Transit (SolTrans) in 2011.  SolTrans was formed as a 

joint powers authority independent from the two cities that had been operating Benicia 

and Vallejo Transit.  SolTrans coordinates its local and intercity services with regional 

services such as the SF Bay Ferry and BART.  Further coordination and consolidation of 

services remains an option. 

 

MTC directed multi‐agency Short Range Transit Plans (SRTP) be prepared at sub‐regional 

levels including Solano County.   A Solano Coordinated SRTP was completed for the first 

time in 2013.  This Coordinated SRTP was intended to coordinate interagency service 

and capital planning.  This process was also to identify service improvements, 

performance objectives and potential service functional and institutional consolidation 

opportunities. 

 

A countywide I‐80/I‐680/I‐780 Transit Corridor Study update was initiated.  Phase I was 

completed in 2014.  The Transit Corridor Study Phase II, which is developing an 

implementation and operation plan, is currently under development.  This study is 

creating a vision of Solano’s intercity transit in the future including its coordination with 

local and regional transit systems.  

 

b. When requested, support transit operators who are interested in system 

consolidation. 

Preliminary Proposal:   The STA remains available to support transit operators interested 

in system consolidation. 

 

4. Ensure mobility by providing services for senior, people with disabilities, and the low‐income 

population. 

a. Implement the countywide Mobility Management Plan and the Community Based 

Transit Plans. 

Significant Progress – The 2013 countywide Mobility Management Plan was an 

implementation plan for four programs.  The four programs have been implemented.  

1) One Stop Transportation Call Center.  The Mobility Call Center began 

operating in 2014.  It was integrated with the Solano Napa Commuter 

Information (SNCI) call center and handles calls, mail in and internet 

12



 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

inquiries.  In‐person queries are handled 

primarily by its off‐site location in the Suisun City Amtrak Station.  The 

Call Center uses, and makes available to the public, a new Solano 

Mobility website which features a wide range of public, private and non‐

profit transportation services for seniors, people with disabilities and 

the low‐income population. 

2) Countywide Travel Training Program.  This has been implemented 

through partnerships with multiple agencies.  FAST, SolTrans, and  

Vacaville City Coach manages their Transit Ambassador programs.  In 

2015, the STA began contracting with two non‐profits (Independent 

Living Resource Center and Connections for Life) to handle Travel  

Ambassador services for the balance of the county, long‐distance trips 

and for individuals with cognitive and/or physical disabilities.  Travel 

Training videos, Rider Guides, and other materials were produced. 

3) Countywide ADA Eligibility Program.  A countywide in‐person ADA 

assessment eligibility program was implemented in 2013 via contract.  

Assessments have been conducted in all jurisdictions on a rotating 

schedule. 

4) Older Driver Safety Information Program.  An inventory of Older Driver 

Safety Training Programs was created and presented on the Solano 

Mobility website.  Mobility options for seniors have been presented at 

Senior Driver Training sessions lead by the California Highway Patrol 

(CHP) several times a year throughout the county. 

Community Based Transportation Plans (CBTPs) have been partially implemented.   

Several of the Mobility Management programs and activities were also priorities of the 

CBTPs.  There are still some priority projects of the CBTPs that remain to be 

implemented as funding allows. 

b. To ensure long‐term viability and mobility, evaluate existing delivery of Americans with 

Disabilities Act (ADA) and other paratransit services countywide as well as alternative 

delivery options. 

Significant Progress – ADA Paratransit services have been reviewed, evaluated, and 

modified in several ways in the past ten years.  Service was restructured, new ADA taxi 

programs were created, and a new ADA assessment process was implemented.  The 

demand for these services has been increasing and is projected to continue to increase.  

The evaluation and modification of services will need to continue to ensure long‐term 

viability and mobility. 

 

c. Utilize the Consolidated Transportation Services Agency (CTSA), Solano Seniors and 

People with Disabilities Transportation Advisory Committee and Paratransit 

Coordinating Council (PCC) as a one of several venues to guide the identification, 

13



 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

development and evaluation of effective transportation services 

for seniors and people with disabilities and other mobility programs.  

Significant Progress – this is another goal that will be difficult to ever actually complete.  

Use of these Committees to guide the identification, development, evaluation and 

implementation of transportation services for seniors, people with disabilities, and low‐

income will be an ongoing process.  To the extent that these committees have been 

established and meet on a regular basis with STA staff support, however, that aspect of 

the goal has been Completed. 

 

5. Implement projects and programs to address the “first mile/last mile” gap faced by transit users. 

Preliminary Proposal – this is a new proposal, but it addresses a well‐known issue with intercity 

bus, rail and ferry services.  Namely, these transit vehicles typically move between specified hubs 

that may not be immediately adjacent to the residences from which people begin their trips, or 

the shopping, civic, entertainment or employment centers that are their destinations.  The 

distance between the transit hub and the origins/destinations is known as the first mile/last mile.   

 

Carpool and vanpool riders are much less likely to face this issue, because surface or structure 

parking is usually close by important destinations.  First mile/last mile connections can be 

provided by a number of alternatives,  including bikeshare, local shuttles, taxis, carsharing, 

effective pedestrian networks and, more recently, transportation network companies (TNCs) such 

as Lyft or Uber. 

 

6. Seek to increase transit and rideshare usage at a rate faster than the Solano County population 

growth rate. 

 Preliminary Proposal – this is a new proposal, and replaces a previous goal that sought a 

quantifiable percentage increase in transit ridership.  This new goal seeks to expand ridership at 

a faster rate than the population growth, which has the benefits of both a net reduction in 

congestion and a net reduction in per capita GHG emissions.  Specific steps to achieve this goal 

are identified elsewhere in this plan, and in individual focused studies such as the Intercity 

Transit Corridor Study.  Keys to increased transit use include service speed, frequency, 

dependability and safety, routes that pick people up or drop them off where they live or work or 

shop, and services that are affordable and easy to use.   Keys to increasing ridesharing are that 

it’s convenient, dependable, flexible, safe and affordable.  Capacity of conveniently located 

park‐and‐ride lots and other facilities for carpoolers and vanpoolers to meet will be needed.  

Uncongested HOV/HOT lanes with convenient access will attract longer distance ridesharers by 

reducing travel time and increasing dependability.  Consideration should be given to if and how 

recently developing vehicle‐sharing and TNC‐based ridesharing services are to be 

accommodated. 

 

An important aspect of this goal will be data gathering and analysis.  A baseline must first be 

established, measuring the use of all forms of transit.  After this baseline is established,  

 

14



 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

comparable information must be gathered in future years and measured 

against population change trend lines in order to determine if transit and rideshare usage is or is 

not growing faster than the county population.  It will also be useful to compare Solano county 

data against that of nearby similar counties, and that of the Bay Area and Sacramento regions.   

 

7.  Ensure system effectiveness by preparing periodic and timely reviews of transit service 

performance.  

Significant Progress – This goal is complete, but always incomplete as it is an on‐going goal.   

Transit service performance is measured on a regular basis through a variety of means.  

Quarterly reporting of ridership, vehicle hours, fare revenue and farebox recovery has been 

required for the SolanoExpress routes as part of the ITF and is reviewed throughout the year.  

Annual TDA claims include performance data for local and intercity fixed route and paratransit 

services.  SRTPs performed every few years include performance data for the past and future.  

The regular ITF Ridership Surveys on SolanoExpress (and sometimes local) routes collect a wide 

range of ridership and performance data.  Operators collect and submit data to NTD (National 

Transit Database).  In the past ten years, a locally administered countywide survey of 

commuters and how they commute (including the mode they use) was discontinued.  Similar, 

but more limited, data is collected through the American Community Survey which is part of the 

US Census. 

 

 

Develop and Maintain Infrastructure 

 

8. Maintain and develop conveniently located transit and rideshare facilities and policies that 

support public transit services while leaving opportunities for private sector transit and support 

services to operate.  

Preliminary Proposal – Numerous companies in the South Bay’s Silicon Valley provide 

complimentary private bus services to their campuses for their employees.  These are 

colloquially known as “Google buses” as Google was one of the leaders in this field.  These 

vehicles have the advantage of providing direct connections between employees’ residential 

areas and work location thus eliminating the first mile/last mile problem.  These highly 

personalized bus services are delivered at no cost to the employee and do not use public funds.  

They do usually use public facilities as gathering locations in residential areas such as park and 

rides or transit facilities.  In 2015, at least one known employer (South San Francisco’s 

Genentech) operated an employee bus route from Solano County.  The SSF Genentech campus 

is a difficult location to reach by public transit (multiple transfers would be needed) and the 

employer operated luxury buses make the trip much more convenient.  The ability for private 

services to supplement the public services is a valuable contribution to efforts to improve 

mobility, reduce congestion, and reduce GHG emissions. 

 

 

15



 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

9. Continue to build upon Solano residents’ high rate of commuter carpool 

and vanpool participation by identifying convenient park and ride lot locations, constructing or 

expanding park and ride lots, and implementing an Express Lane system on major freeways.  

Significant Progress – As identified in the State of the System, Solano County residents have the 

highest rate of car/vanpooling in the Bay Area.  STA and the member agencies have built a  

number of carpool facilities around the county, and have identified locations for additional 

facilities.  These carpool facilities are typically identified in Freeway Corridor Studies.  In 

addition, transit facilities also act as park‐and‐ride and vanpool meeting locations.  

 

STA has also prioritized extension and completion of the express lane network in locally adopted 

plans and in our requests for funding in regional plans such as Plan Bay Area. 

a. Continue to provide innovative rideshare services through Solano Napa Commuter 

Information.   

Significant Progress ‐ The Solano Napa Commuter Information program has been 

providing rideshare services throughout this period.  Services and outreach have 

evolved with technology improvements and integration with multi‐modal marketing and 

outreach. 

b. Increase the inventory of park and ride spaces. 

Significant Progress – The inventory of park and ride spaces has increased with the 

construction of Oliver Rd and Red Top Rd PNRs in Fairfield, the Vacaville and Vallejo 

Transit Centers, and improvements to the Curtola PNR.  One PNR was lost (Green 

Valley).  All PNRs are well used and often at capacity especially those located at transit 

facilities.  Additional PNRs are planned for the future. 

c. Construct park and ride lots in areas that are currently underserved.  

Significant Progress – Two PNRs were constructed in Fairfield where the FTC had been, 

and continues, to lack capacity for all users (public and private bus, carpool, vanpool). 

d. Monitor developments and best practices in both the private and public sectors that 

encourage shared rides and evaluate how they may impact carpooling and vanpooling 

services for commuters and others in Solano County. 

Preliminary Proposal – There has been rapid growth and change in recent years in the 

field of shared mobility.  This includes not only transportation network companies such 

as Lyft, Uber and others but also carsharing, bikesharing and private transit services.  

Much of this is a result of the proliferation of smart phone technology and applications 

and greater interest by the private sector in the transportation field.  One result has 

been a change in direction regionally by MTC in how SNCI will be delivering services and 

funded in the future.  Monitoring private sector and adjusting to new regional funding 

policies will be necessary. 

 

10. Focus transit and rideshare infrastructure investments into Transit Facilities of Regional 

Significance.  “Transit Facilities” are permanent, fixed infrastructure such as bus, ferry and train  

 

16



 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

stations, maintenance yards, guideways, and the roadways used by 

transit vehicles, “Regional Significant” means connecting Solano County and its communities 

with the greater northern California region, or connecting communities within Solano County.  

Transit Facilities of Regional Significance are: 

a. All passenger rail lines, and all passenger train stations, current or planned, identified in 

an adopted STA Plan. 

Significant Progress – Suisun City Amtrak Station is fully functioning with public and 

private transit service, ample parking, taxi service, bike lockers, and along pedestrian 

and bicycle routes.  The Fairfield/Vacaville train station is nearing completion with 

nearby major roadway improvements initiated in 2015 and an expected station opening 

in 2017.  In Dixon, pedestrian separation improvements have been made in the area of a 

potential future train station in downtown Dixon.  On‐time performance of the Capitol 

Corridor has been very good, though some concerns remain as freight train traffic is 

projected to increase, track access in the Suisun wetlands must be preserved in 

changing conditions, and potential train delays due to bridge risings across the 

Carquinez Straits. 

b. All ferry facilities, including terminals, channels, maintenance docks and fueling stations, 

current or planned, identified in an adopted STA Plan. 

Significant Progress:  Until 2012, Solano’s ferry facilities in Vallejo were managed by City 

of Vallejo/Vallejo Transit.   Then and in accordance with State legislation, WETA (or the 

SF Bay Ferry) assumed management of the Vallejo to San Francisco ferry service and 

ownership of the ferry capital.   WETA manages the Vallejo Ferry Terminal, dredges the 

channel, maintains the dock and has been moving and expanding the ferry maintenance 

and fueling facility located on Mare Island.   

c. Bus stations providing all of the following services: 

i. Routes to destinations outside Solano County or between two or more cities in 

Solano County  

ii. Peak hour headways of 1 hour or less 

Significant Progress:  Funding has constructed, expanded, and improved several 

bus stations in the past ten years.  The Vacaville Transit Center and the Vallejo 

Transit Center and nearby waterfront shared parking structure were built.  

Curtola PNR is being improved.  Some facilities need further improvement and 

new facilities are projected to be constructed and will need further investment. 

d. Maintenance and parking facilities for busses providing services identified in a, b or c 

above.  

Significant Progress ‐ Funding was secured to renovate the SolTrans bus maintenance 

facility for local and SolanoExpress bus fleet and the project was completed in 2015. The 

FAST maintenance facility for SolanoExpress buses may require renovation in the future. 

 

11.  Improve safety by reducing accidents and injuries (motorists, pedestrians, bicyclists and others) 

in the vicinity of significant transit facilities, develop a strategic plan to address the issue. 

Significant Progress – In 2012, STA adopted its Safe Routes to Transit Plan.  This Plan identified 

17



 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

the most common hazards and locations for transit riders in and around 

five Transit Facilities of Regional Significance.  Issues identified with these centers are common 

to all transit centers, and the recommended improvements provide a template for any other 

locations.  When existing Transit Facilities of Regional Significance are improved, safety 

measures from the Safe Routes to Transit Plan can then be incorporated.  Likewise, when new 

transit centers are built, appropriate safety features can be incorporated. 

a. Quantify, and periodically update, accident statistics for roads, trails and intersections 

within ¼ miles of Transit Facilities of Regional Significance.  Preliminary Proposal – STA 

has not yet established a data gathering plan for this or other safety issues. 

b. Establish a priority list for improvements to reduce accidents and injuries in the Safe 

Routes to Transit Plan.  Completed. 
12. Implement effective paratransit services.  

Significant Progress – Paratransit services have evolved and changed over the past several 

years.  Paratransit services have been restructured to be more efficient, increase capacity and 

improve mobility.  Improvements in some areas are still necessary.  Services continue to be 

evaluated and service changes implemented  to meet increasing demands.  

 

Help Improve Air Quality 

13. Reduce air pollutant emissions related to transit and rideshare by developing and implementing 

the Solano County Alternative Fuel and Infrastructure Plan. 

Significant Progress – the STA alternative fuels and infrastructure as plan was adopted in 2013.  

STA has subsequently assisted SolTrans and the City of Dixon in preparing specific studies 

regarding the location of compressed natural gas fueling facilities for fleet vehicles.  

Implementation of the ideas from the alternative fuels and infrastructure plan will be an 

ongoing process.   

a. Help transit operators identify and obtain funds to offset the incremental cost of purchasing 

and operating alternative fuel and other clean transit vehicles. 

Preliminary Proposal – The SolanoExpress vehicle replacement funding plan includes 

funding for alternative fuel (Compressed Natural Gas) vehicles.  Transit operators will need 

continued support in identifying and obtaining funds for alternative fuel local and support 

vehicles. 

 

14. Assist transit operators who wish to upgrade fixed facilities to be more energy efficient. 

Preliminary Proposal – Facilities being renovated in 2015 included new energy‐ efficient 

features.  Additional facilities could be upgraded to be more energy efficient. 

 

 

18



 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

Fund Vehicles, Facilities and Services 

15. Create and implement programs to help fund adequate maintenance, repair and replacement of 

transit vehicles and supporting infrastructure.  

Significant Progress – this has been in large part accomplished.  A funding plan has been 

developed and approved by the STA Board for the upcoming replacement of aging 

SolanoExpress vehicles.  Local bus replacements have been funded through various funding 

plans and sources such as 5307, TDA, and Prop 1B Revenue‐based funds.    This will be an on‐

going goal as vehicles and facilities will need to be continued to be replaced, repaired and 

maintained. 

 

16. Create and implement programs to help fund adequate maintenance and strategic expansion of 

Transit Facilities of Regional Significance.  

Preliminary Proposal – Funding plans have been developed and implemented to complete a 

renovation of the SolTrans maintenance facility and the expansion the Curtola Park and Ride.  

Expansion and construction of additional facilities will be needed in the future. 

 

17. To facilitate informed service and investment decisions, provide decision‐makers with timely, 

accurate and sufficient information.  

a. Ensure the transit corridor studies are conducted and kept up‐to‐date for all major 

transit corridors including I‐80/I‐680/I‐780, SR12, SR29 and SR 37.   

Significant Progress – an updated I‐80/I‐680/I‐780/SR‐12 Transit Corridor Study Phase I 

was approved by the STA Board in 2014.  The next phase is under development. 

b. Conduct countywide ridership surveys every two‐ three years. 

Significant Progress – Countywide ridership surveys have been conducted every two‐

three years.  Four have been conducted since 2006.  These are required under the ITF 

agreement but have also provided a wealth of other information on the SolanoExpress 

routes and on local routes when they have been included in the survey. 

 

18. Make investment decisions in partnership with regional mass transit providers, including local 

partners such as local transit providers, the Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Authority (CCJPA) and 

Water Emergency Transit Authority (WETA) and regional partners such as BART, MTC and 

Caltrans. 

Completed – STA monitors the agendas of WETA, MTC, and participates in the Capitol 

Corridor JPA staff working group.  STA Board members also sit on the CCJPA and SolTrans boards 

of directors.  Caltrans and MTC staff regularly attend STA TAC and other committee meetings.  

SolanoExpress operators FAST and SolTrans staff, along with the other Solano transit operators, 

are part of the SolanoExpress Intercity Transit Consortium.  This is an on‐going goal. 

 

19



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page intentionally left blank 

20



 

  Agenda Item 6.B 
January 25, 2016  

 
 
DATE:  January 11, 2016 
TO:   STA Transit and Rideshare Committee  
FROM:  Elizabeth Richards, STA Consultant 
RE:  Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) Transit Element Update - Resources 
 

Background:  
The Solano Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) is one of the STA’s primary long-range 
planning documents along with the Congestion Management Program (CMP) and the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s Regional Transportation Plan, known as Plan Bay 
Area. The CTP consists of three main elements: Active Transportation; Arterials, Highways and 
Freeways; and, Transit and Ridesharing.  
 
The overall purpose of the CTP is to identify opportunities and resources to move the 
countywide transportation system from its current condition to a desired future condition, and to 
then prioritize steps to bring this change to fruition. The first step in preparing the Transit and 
Rideshare Element was identification of those services and facilities that the Element’s policies 
are designed to influence; namely, intercity transit services. These intercity transit services 
provide connectivity between Solano County’s communities, and connect Solano County with 
the wider Northern California mega-region, especially the Bay Area. The primary components of 
the Transit and Rideshare system are:  

 Intercity bus service, primarily provided by FAST and Soltrans  
 Intercity rail provided by the Capitol Corridor  
 Ferry service from WETA  
 Vanpools and carpools  
 Paratransit and Mobility Management services  

 
The State of the System has been approved by the Transit Committee and the Board.  The Goals 
have been presented to the Transit Committee and are on the January Board agenda for approval.   
A Goal Gap Analysis has been drafted for the Transit Committee’s and the Consortium’s review 
on January 25 and 26, respectively.  In addition, the Consortium will be reviewing the Resources 
section for the first time at their January meeting.  The Transit Committee reviewed the draft 
Resources section in December and it is now being presented for approval.  There are a few 
changes as a result of the approval of a federal transportation bill after the December Transit 
Committee.  The next step will be to develop processes and policies to achieve the goals.  
 
 
 

21



 

Discussion: 
 
There is a wide range of funding sources for transit operating and capital.  Funding comes from 
all levels:  federal, State, regional and local.  Some sources are long-standing, flexible and 
reliable; others are short-term, specific and competitive.  One constant is that the funding is 
environment is always changing.   What has been available in the past is not what will be 
available in the future.  The CTP-Transit Element Resources section (attached) presents the 
funding that has been available since the last CTP in 2005 and how that funding has been used in 
Solano County for intercity SolanoExpress bus service operators, carpool/vanpool services of the 
Solano Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) program, Intercity ADA Paratransit and subsidized 
taxi service, and Mobility Management.   There will be limited discussion of rail and ferry 
resources as those services are operated by agencies outside Solano county.  The Resources 
section also discusses the anticipated direction of funding for these same services in the future.  
Highlights of the attached Resources chapter are presented below. 
 
Federal 
 
One of the major funding sources for transit, including intercity bus service, is the Federal 
Transit Administration’s 5307 funding program.  These funds are distributed by formula directly 
to urbanized areas (UZAs).  This has been a long-standing and significant source of funds that 
FAST and SolTrans receive directly.  These operators may use them for capital or operating 
assistance. 
 
The federal legislation that directs FTA funding has been MAP-21 since 2012 originally 
intended to expire in 2014 but has been repeatedly extended.  In December 2015, the President 
signed a five-year transportation funding bill – the FAST (Fixing America’s Surface 
Transportation) Act.  At this time, it appears that funding levels will not increase or decrease 
significantly nor will there be dramatic policy changes.  The longstanding 5307 funding source 
remains.  
 
The 2009 ARRA program supplemented 5307 funding recipients which helped with several 
SolTrans, FAST and Vacaville capital projects that support the SolanoExpress services.  This 
was one-time funding program and all ARRA funds have been allocated.  Other federal 
programs that have funded SolanoExpress bus operating or capital have been the longstanding 
5311 (rural) program and the MAP-21 State of Good Repair Program (5337). 
 
Federal funding has also supported carpool/vanpool SNCI, ADA Intercity Paratransit and the 
Mobility Management program.  SNCI has received CMAQ funding.   Paratransit received 5307 
funds and Mobility Management received 5316 and 5317 funds. In the future, paratransit will not 
be able to use 5307 funds and both of the Mobility Management funding programs have been 
incorporated into other funding categories.   
 
State 
 
TDA (Transportation Development Act) funds are one of the primary funding sources for transit.  
TDA funds are generated from a countywide one-quarter-of-one-percent sales tax to support 

22



 

transit, transportation for disabled individuals and more.  With the economic downtown in the 
past 10 years, TDA revenues decreased sharply.  TDA funds are longstanding revenue 
distributed by formula, very flexible and can be used for operating and capital.  TDA revenue has 
been gradually rebounding and is expected to continue to increase modestly as Solano’s local 
economy continues to improve. 
 
State Transit Assistance Funds (STAF) are also a longstanding revenue source for intercity (and 
local) transit.  The revenue generated is based on fuel sales and is distributed in part statewide by 
formula directly to transit operators.  These “revenue-based STAF” funds can be used for 
intercity and paratransit operating or capital.  The balance, “population-based STAF” is 
distributed in the Bay Area by MTC after 25% is retained for MTC coordination programs.  
MTC distributes the “Pop-based STAF” via three programs: Northern County/Small Operators, 
Regional Paratransit and Lifeline.  The STA programs these funds:  the first one may be used 
very broadly for operating, capital, planning, marketing and more while the other two are fairly 
restrictive as the names imply.  Overall, STAF has funded intercity SolanoExpress services, 
ADA paratransit, and the mobility management program.  STAF revenue in the future are will 
depend on fuel sales and MTC program policies.  No major changes are anticipated at this time. 
 
The State’s Proposition 1B bonds approved in 2006 have helped fund FAST and SolTrans 
capital. The State’s new Cap and Trade program created a Greenhouse Gas Reduction (GHG) 
Fund from the auction proceeds.  One of the programs this will fund is the Transit and Intercity 
Rail Capital Program (TIRCP).  The TIRCP will help support transportation investments by 
improving the quality and reliability of public transportation choices; this is to be funded with 
10% of the GHG fund revenue.  Distribution of these funds is through a statewide competitive 
process and candidate projects must demonstrate GHG reduction among other criteria. 
The first round of allocations occurred in 2015; none for Solano County projects.  Legislative 
efforts have been undertaken to increase the percentage for TIRCP.  
 
Regional 
 
Bridge tolls are an important revenue source for SolanoExpress services and have also 
contributed to several capital projects that support the SolanoExpress system.  The capital 
projects have either been completed or are under construction.  The SolanoExpress routes that 
cross the Benicia and Carquinez bridges receive RM2 operating funds.  The amount is stable and 
doesn’t decrease, but it only increases 1.5% annually.   
 
Solano’s carpool/vanpool program has benefited from several regional funding sources.  SNCI 
has received steady funding support through competitive Bay Area Air Quality Management 
District (BAAQMD) and Yolo Solano Air Quality Management District (YSAQMD) funding 
programs.  The air districts fund projects that reduce vehicle emissions.  No major changes are 
expected in the future.  However, SNCI also received a significant portion of their funding from 
MTC’s Regional Rideshare Program (RRP) for the past two decades.    MTC is making a major 
change of direction in how they deliver carpool and vanpool services and will significantly 
reduce its commitment to the SNCI program after FY2017.  
 
 

23



 

Local 
 
Passenger fares are a large revenue source for SolanoExpress routes.  The seven routes all 
perform well with FY2013 farebox recovery rates ranging from 25% to 69%.  Passenger fares 
also fund, albeit at a lower level, intercity ADA paratransit and taxi programs.  Maintaining a 
high farebox recovery should remain an important goal for a customer service and cost recovery 
points of views. 
The Intercity SolanoExpress service has been funded through the Intercity Transit Funding (ITF) 
agreement since 2006.  The ITF distributes the cost of these countywide transit services among 
all transit operators which has created funding and service stability.  Any major increases or 
decreases in SolanoExpress service levels and costs would need agreement of all the funding 
partners.  The ITF agreement is expected to continue and has been used as a basis to share the 
cost of replacing the SolanoExpress vehicles as well. 
 
Parking fees have created a relatively new local revenue stream for transit.  Parking fees have 
been established at the Vallejo Transit Center parking structure and nearby surface parking 
shared with the Ferry Terminal.  Efforts have been made to impose a parking fee at the Fairfield 
Transportation Center (FTC).  Advertising at transit facilities and on buses also generate 
revenue. 
 
Conclusions 
 
It is not possible to project with any specificity the amount of future funding that will be 
available for intercity bus, carpool/vanpool services, ADA intercity paratransit and mobility 
management programs.  The past gives an idea of funding that has been available and how it’s 
been used, but does not offer a definitive picture of future funding.  Change is the constant when 
it comes to transit and rideshare funding. 
 
A major piece of transit funding had been flux until a new five-year Federal transportation bill 
was approved in December 2015; initial review suggests few major changes in funding levels.  
State on-going funding sources such as TDA and STAF are expected to remain reasonably stable 
or modestly increase.  Key regional funding sources are mixed:  RM2 is stable, but the Regional 
Rideshare Program (RRP) funding will be significantly decreased.  One new opportunity on the 
horizon for intercity transit appears to be the State’s competitive Cap and Trade program. 
 
The current view of resources suggests that sustaining the current level of service of intercity 
bus, carpool/vanpool services, ADA intercity paratransit and mobility management services will 
be challenging - expanding to meet future needs even more so. 
 
This report will be reviewed by the Solano express intercity transit consortium at their meeting 
of the January 26, 2016.  Comments provided by committee members will be incorporated into 
the final version of the report which is presented to the STA Board. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 

24



 

Recommendation: 
Recommend to the STA Board to approve the CTP-Transit Element Resources Chapter as shown 
in Attachment A. 
 
Attachment: 

A. Draft CTP-Transit Element Resources Chapter (v. 1.11.16) 

25



 

ATTACHMENT A 

CTP – Transit Element 

Resources1 

 

Resources will be needed to maintain, modify and possibly expand transit and rideshare services to 
meet the future mobility demands of Solano residents, employees and visitors.  The amount of 
resources will depend on numerous dynamic factors such as the level of basic demand, public policy 
goals at multiple levels, cost of service delivery and the mix of services and capital to support the 
services.  Resources in this context refer to funding.   Funding is needed to deliver vehicles, fuel, 
maintenance, drivers, support staff, and facilities operation, maintenance and construction.  Funding 
is needed also for program staff, taxi fare subsidy and other program expenses.  This section will 
focus of the existing and projected resources available for transit and rideshare services.   

Funding for transit and rideshare services is derived from a variety of sources ranging from the 
federal government to users.  This discussion will be review the types of funding from the various 
levels (federal, state, regional, local, and user) primarily for intercity bus, rideshare, Intercity ADA 
Paratransit and mobility management programs.  Although there are rail and ferry stops in Solano, 
these services are operated and funded by agencies outside of Solano. 

 

Federal 
 
Federal funding for transportation projects is determined by legislation approved by Congress and is 
periodically renewed.  Federal transportation funding was guided by what was known as SAFETEA-
LU (Safe, Accountable, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users) from 2005 until 
September 2012.  SAFETEA-LU was originally intended to guide transportation funding for four 
years but was repeatedly extended.  SAFETEA-LU continued some longstanding funding programs 
and created some new ones.   
 
In 2012, a new two-year transportation bill was approved, known as Moving Ahead of Progress in 
the 21st Century, or MAP-21.  It authorized just over $10.5 billion for each of the two years for 
public transit.  Since MAP-21’s original expiration date of September 30, 2014, Congress has enacted 
short-term extensions allowing the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) to continue its programs 
through the end of October 2015.  In December 2015, a new five-year transportation funding bill 
was approved and became known as the FAST (Fixing America’s Surface Transportation) Act.  
 

                                                            
1 v. 1/11/16 

26



 

FAST authorizes $300 billion over five years through FFY2019-20.  Funding begins slightly above 
the MAP-21 level and increases 1-2% annually.  There are some modifications as compared to 
MAP-21 but upon initial review there does not appear to be major increases or decreases for transit. 
 
There are multiple types of federal transit funding which are designated for different purposes.  With 
new federal transportation legislation, some funding programs stay the same while others are 
eliminated and added. Program funding parameters may be very specific or broad.  Some are 
distributed by formula and others are competitive.  Given the funding parameters, all transit 
operators do not receive all types of funding. Federal funds are generally used by Solano transit 
operators for local and intercity operating and capital projects and improvements, ADA paratransit 
service and capital, and mobility management programs.  
 
The Urbanized Area (UZA) Formula Program (5307) was in both SAFETEA-LU and MAP-21 and 
has been a funding category since the 1980s; it remains in the FAST Act.  These funds are for areas 
with a population of over 50,000 and may be used fairly broadly particularly for areas with a 
population of under 200,000.  There are three UZA in Solano that qualify for 5307 funds:  
Vallejo/Benicia, Fairfield/Suisun City and Vacaville.  Transit capital, operating (in some situations) 
and planning have been eligible expenses for SolanoExpress operators FAST and SolTrans.  
SolTrans has also received funds from the San Francisco-Oakland UZA for ADA Paratransit; this 
will discontinue beginning in FY2014-15.  Other than this last item, it is assumed that this operating 
assistance will continue to be provided and that the level of funding support for urbanized areas will 
modestly increasing under the FAST Act. . 
 
The American Recovery and Reinvestment (ARRA) of 2009 augmented the FTA’s 5307 program 
awarding $17 million for several projects in Solano.  The SolTrans maintenance facility renovation, 
the Vallejo Transit Center and Ferry downtown parking structure, FAST bus replacement and 
improvements, and Vacaville City Coach intermodal facility and bus replacement were all projects 
that received some of their funding from ARRA.  All ARRA funds have been allocated.  
 
The 5310 program (Transportation for Elderly Persons and Persons with Disabilities) was in both 
SAFETEA-LU and MAP-21.  In MAP-21, what had been a separate funding program (5317 – New 
Freedom discussed below) was incorporated into the 5310 program.  5310 is a competitive funding 
program managed by the State.  5310 projects are intended to be for capital projects that will 
improve mobility for seniors and people with disabilities in traditional ways as required by ADA as 
well as nontraditional investments to improve mobility beyond ADA requirements.  The STA’s PCC 
capital projects applications from Solano County.  Successful projects have primarily been vehicle 
replacements for non-profit organizations transporting people with disabilities, public paratransit 
vehicles providing service beyond ADA and related support equipment such as radios.  The 5310 
program continues in the FAST Act.  One change worth noting is that States and local government 
entities operating public transit services are clarified as eligible direct recipients of Section 5310 
assistance 

27



 

The Rural Transportation Assistance Funds (5311) program was similar to 5307 for non-urbanized 
areas.  These formula funds have been directly distributed to Dixon Readi-Ride and Rio Vista Delta 
Breeze and used as operating assistance and capital projects primarily bus replacement.  SolTrans 
and FAST have also received 5311 funding for operating SolanoExpress routes in rural areas. Solano 
Transportation Authority allocates this funding to Solano transit operators and submits to MTC for 
programming with Caltrans.   5311 funding continues under the FAST Act and the level of funding 
slightly increasing.  
 
The Jobs Access Reverse Commute (JARC) (5316) Program funded projects that would address 
transportation challenges faced by welfare recipients and low-income people seeking to obtain 
employment as well as provide reverse primary commute route services.  JARC was a distinct 
funding category in SAFETEA-LU but was subsumed into the 5307 and 5311 programs with MAP-
21.  MAP-21 changed JARC from a competitive to a formula funding process at the State level, but 
the projects were selected competitively at that point and had to be in a Coordinated Plan.   
JARC has funded Solano Lifeline projects and the Mobility Management program.  
 
The New Freedom Program (5317) was a new and distinct program in SAFETEA-LU, but was 
incorporated into the 5310 program in MAP-21.  The 5317 funds were for services to improve 
mobility for individuals with disabilities above and beyond Americans with Disabilities (ADA) 
requirements.  The projects had to have been identified in an approved plan.  New Freedom funds 
were used to fund Solano’s Mobility Management Program.  
 
A new program in MAP-21 continued in the FAST Act, the State of Good Repair (5337) program, 
has funded both FAST and SolTrans which will help with their share of the funding needed to 
replace the SolanoExpress bus fleet among other items.  The STA Board approved an Intercity Bus 
Replacement Capital Funding Plan.  Members of the Intercity Transit Funding (ITF) Agreement 
(discussed later) will contribute funds to replace the SolanoExpress fleet with funding also to come 
from the STA and possibly MTC. 
 
The Surface Transportation Program (STP) has been the most flexible highway funding program 
and historically one of the largest single programs.  States and metropolitan areas may use these 
funds for not only highway, bridge, pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure, but also transit capital 
projects, transportation demand management (TDM), and carpool projects.   The amount of STP 
funds were increased in MAP-21 from SAFETEA-LU, however more programs were incorporated 
under the STP category most significantly bridges which previously had a set-aside.  Congestion 
Mitigation/Air Quality (CMAQ) is another federal funding program limited to projects or programs 
that have a direct impact on reducing congestion or air pollutant emissions.  MTC is the federal 
recipient of STP and CMAQ funds and manages the distribution of these funds in the Bay Area.   
This includes additional “Eastern County CMAQ” funds derived from the portion of the Solano 
County in the Sacramento air basin and the funds are to be used for projects in eastern Solano 
County.  Train stations and the Solano Napa Commuter Information rideshare program have 

28



 

received CMAQ funds.   In recent years, STP/CMAQ funds have been distributed through MTC’s 
One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) process.   Under the FAST Act, STP has been incorporated under a 
broader category – the new Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBGP) - and increases 
1% annually.  CMAQ funding remains at the same level to start with and increasing 1-2% annually; 
new projects have become eligible for CMAQ funding including port-related freight operations. 
 
The TIGER (Transportation Investment Generating Economic Recovery) grant program invests in 
road, rail, transit and port projects that achieve national objectives.  Since 2009, Congress has 
dedicated nearly $44.6 billion for seven rounds of TIGER to fund projects that have a significant 
impact on the nation, region or metropolitan area.  Seventy-one (71) transit projects have been 
funded representing 28% of total TIGER funding.  TIGER projects tend to be multi-jurisdictional 
that are difficult to support through traditional DOT programs.  The Capitol Corridor has received 
TIGER grant funding for capital improvements. 
 
Earmarks:  Since the 2005 CTP, there has been a change in the policy of earmarks.  Until 2010, 
applications could be made directly to a federal or state agency, and the grant was in turn provided 
directly to the implementing agency.  Members of Congress and Senators could “earmark” funds for 
specific projects in their districts.  For the past five years federal funds have not been earmarked, 
and the Solano CTP is based upon the assumption that earmarking will not return. 
 
The direction of federal transit funding has just recently been determined by the passage of the 
FAST Act in December 2015.  Analysis of the bill has begun and details are emerging.   With the 
passage of the FAST Act, long-term transportation funding will be known for the first time in ten 
years.   

 

State 

Transportation Development Act (TDA)-Local Tax Fund (LTF) Apportionments:  TDA funds are 
derived from a countywide one-quarter-of-one-percent sales tax to support transit, transportation 
for disabled individuals and bicycle and pedestrian purposes.  This is a major source of funding for 
intercity, local and paratransit operations in Solano.  TDA also supports the ADA Subsidized 
Intercity Taxi Program. TDA revenues were increasing until the 2008 economic downturn when 
they declined sharply and then gradually began increasing.  Future TDA funding will be dependent 
upon local sales tax generation which is moving in a positive direction.    

State Transit Assistance funds (STAF) are derived from taxes on fuel sales.  STAF revenue tends to 
vary annually due to the variations in fuel sales.  Some STAF is distributed by formula directly from 
the State to transit operators (revenue-based STAF).  Population-based STAF is distributed through 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) programs in the Northern Bay Area counties.  
There are various categories, but there is a fair amount of flexibility overall.  Solano’s population-
based STAF is allocated to the STA and has been used for vehicle local match, intercity operating 

29



 

assistance, transit facilities, intercity transit planning, transit coordination, ADA paratransit, mobility 
management, and more.  Future STAF revenue will depend on fuel sales and MTC programming 
policies. 

The Prop 1B/PTMISEA (Public Transportation Modernization Improvement Service 
Enhancement Account) was created by the approval for a broader Transportation Bond in 2006.  
Over a ten year period ending with the final allocation in FY2014-15, $3.6 billion was made available 
statewide to transit operators for transit capital.  PTMISEA funds were to be used for transit 
rehabilitation, safety or modernization improvements, capital service enhancements or expansions, 
new capital projects, bus rapid transit improvements, or rolling stock (buses and rail cars) 
procurement, rehabilitation or replacement. Funds in this account were appropriated annually by the 
Legislature to the State Controller’s Office (SCO) for allocation in accordance with Public Utilities 
Code formula distributions: 50% allocated to Local Operators based on fare-box revenue and 50% 
to Regional Entities based on population.  Dixon Readi-Ride, SolTrans and FAST received funding 
from this program. 

The State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) funds projects that increase capacity on 
state roads.  STIP funding is a mix of State, federal, and local taxes and fees.  STIP is primarily used 
for roadway construction but may also be used for PNRs and multi-modal facilities that support the 
highway system.  STIP funds have been used for rail and ferry facilities in Solano. 

California’s new Cap and Trade program has created a Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund using 
proceeds from the state’s cap-and-trade auctions. The Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program 
(TIRCP) will help support transportation investments in clean, affordable and low-stress commuting 
and traveling options by improving the quality and reliability of public transportation choices. In its 
first year $25 million was budgeted for 14 projects that were selected in 2015.  In future years, the 
program will receive 10% of the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund revenues.  There have been 
legislative efforts to increase the percentage of the funds directed to the TIRCP so far unsuccessful.  
Distribution of the funds is through a statewide competitive process and candidate projects must 
demonstrate GHG reduction among other criteria. 
 

Regional 

A portion of bridge toll revenue from the seven State-operated Bay Area bridges is allocated for 
transit capital and operating to reduce vehicular traffic congestion on these bridges. One program 
known as RM1(or AB664) funds are intended to be used to match FTA funded transit capital 
projects.  SolTrans is a recipient of these funds managed by MTC.  This program is expected to 
continue though MTC may modify the allocation criteria. 

A second bridge toll funding program is Regional Measure 2 (RM2).   RM2 funds are distributed to 
Solano County on a formula basis and can be used for projects that reduce bridge traffic.  This 
includes intercity bus operations as long as the routes funded meet specific performance standards, 

30



 

i.e. established farebox recovery requirements.  Solano receives approximately $1.9 million annually 
from the RM2 “Regional Express Bus North Pool” which covers services that cross the Carquinez 
and Benicia Bridges.  FAST and SolTrans are recipients of RM2 for delivering SolanoExpress 
services across these two bridges.  RM2 is a stable source of funding that will not decrease. 
However, with an escalation rate of 1.5% annually it will not increase by much and for several years 
the escalation rate had been suspended. 

In Solano, RM2 funds have also been used to construct multi-modal facilities, park and rides, rail 
stations, and Capitol Corridor rail improvements.  Most of these projects have been completed and 
the others are under construction.  

Both the Bay Area Air Quality Management district (BAAQMD) and the Yolo Solano Air Quality 
Management District (YSAQMD) have funds that can be spend on projects that reduce air 
pollutants emissions such as Solano Napa Commuter Information program.  These funds are 
generated from vehicle registration fees in the county.  The BAAQMD program is call 
Transportation Funds for Clean Air (TFCA), and has two components:  regionally-competitive 
funds administered by BAAQMD staff and focused on projects with a regional impact, and CMA 
Program Manager funds, with projects selected and administered by STA.  The YSAQMD Clean Air 
Fund program is guided by a Solano advisory committee, but recipients are selected by the 
YSAQMD Board.  As a whole, this funding stream is expected to grow slowly.  SNCI has 
consistently received funding from these programs and it is assumed this will continue in the future. 

MTC’s Regional Rideshare Program (RRP) has funded a significant portion of the SNCI’s 
carpool/vanpool program for decades. MTC has decided to make major changes to the RRP which 
are expected to significantly reduce funding regionwide and to the SNCI program after FY2016-17. 

 
Local 
 
The seven SolanoExpress intercity transit services are funded through the Intercity Funding (ITF) 
Agreement since 2006.  FAST and SolTrans operate the seven routes which serve all Solano cities 
except Rio Vista.  Intercity transit costs are shared among jurisdictions using a formula that is based 
on two factors:  ridership by residence and population.  This shared funding is for the cost of 
SolanoExpress routes after farebox and other non-local revenue (RM2, grants, etc.) are taken into 
account.  The resulting net cost is shared among the participating jurisdictions based on 20% of 
their population share and 80% of ridership by residence.  This funding agreement is expected to 
continue. 
 
Passenger fares are a major and on-going funding source for SolanoExpress intercity routes.  
Farebox recovery rates on the intercity routes have been consistently strong.  For FY2012-13 the 
farebox recovery rates for these routes ranged from 25%-69%.  Passenger fares also fund, albeit at a 
lower level, intercity ADA paratransit and taxi programs. 

31



 

 
Transit facility parking fees have been introduced in the SolTrans service area. Daily and monthly 
parking fees were charged at the downtown Vallejo Transit Center parking garage when it opened in 
the past few years.  Nearby surface parking shared with the Ferry Terminal also has parking fees. 
 
Revenue is generated from various advertising opportunities created on vehicles and at facilities.  
Interior and exterior bus advertisement space is sold.  Bus facilities in both FAST and SolTrans 
systems create paid advertising space. 
 
Conclusions 

As discussed above, some, but not all, of these funds may be used for intercity transit operating and 
capital, rideshare and mobility management programs.  As a result, it is not possible to accurately 
project available funding for intercity transit operating and capital, rideshare, intercity ADA 
paratransit, and mobility management programs.   

However, some reasonable conclusions may be made about future funding as a compared with 
current funding    Some funding sources that were available in the past ten years are no longer 
available (i.e. federal Earmarks, ARRA, JARC, New Freedom) which were primarily used for transit 
capital and Mobility Management.  Some existing sources are expected to decline significantly such 
as the MTC/Regional Rideshare Program funding.  Most existing funding sources are not projected 
to increase or decrease significantly in the foreseeable future.  California’s new Cap and Trade 
program may be a new source of funds and there have been efforts underway already to increase the 
share for transit.  New funding to transit could be derived from flexible funding sources such as STP 
that have traditionally not been utilized; however, STP has long been used for roadway projects 
which continue to have significant maintenance needs. 

Mobility Management and Solano’s rideshare program began to overlap in 2014 when the Solano 
Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) program took on the role as the Mobility Call Center.  The 
Mobility Management program has funded the SNCI program expansion for these functions and 
expects to continue to do so in the future.  Mobility Management does not have a dedicated source 
of funds to ensure stability for either program. 

The current view of resources suggests that sustaining the current level of service of intercity transit, 
carpool/vanpool services, and mobility management will continue to be challenging.  It will be 
important to stay abreast of often changing funding opportunities, matching their parameters to 
county needs and values, and aggressively pursuing them.  Creative funding options such as 
public/private funding partnerships or delegating elements of service to the private sector may need 
to be considered.  Continual evaluation of services and programs to identify opportunities to shift 
service strategies from less productive to more productive service will be important.  Yet caution 
must also be exercised to maintain the delivery of transit, rideshare and mobility management 
programs to those who need it most – and that need is expected to grow. 

32


	00.Transit Agenda_1-25-16
	04.A_Transit Minutes 12-2-15
	06.A_Transit Committee Rprt Goal Gap Analysis
	Attachment A
	06.B_Transit Committee Rprt Resources
	Attachment A



